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Ndependent Auditors Repart

To the Members of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (the “Company”™) which
camprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and noles to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for tha year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In
accordance with thesa requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements,

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Cempany in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Acl. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements. the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going cancemn, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directars either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always delect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit We aiso

* Identify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not deteciing
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audil procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Dirgctors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as & going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, ncluding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The corresponding amounts for the year ended 31 March 2024, in so far it pertains to the transferor
company, which has been accounted as stated in Note 40 | are based an the audited financial statements
of the transferor company for the year ended 31 Mach 2024 that were audited by another auditor who had
expressed a modified opinion on 30 May 2024. Further, the adjustments for the accounting effects of the
Scheme have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repor that:

a. We have sought and obiained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

b, In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, excepl for the matter stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and that the back-up of the books of account and other relevant books and papers
in electronic mode has not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily basis

¢ The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

d. Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act

2. On the basis of the wrilten representations received from the directors as on 1 April 2025, 21 April
2025 and 30 April 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in lerms of Section 164(2)
of the Act,

f. the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B8(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {(Audit and Auditars)
Rules, 2014.

g With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and io the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31C fo the financial statements,

b.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Fducation and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 41(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behall of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, sacurity or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

() The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited

the Note 41(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{ii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(g), as provided under (i) and (i} above,
contain any material misstatement.

e, The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility. However, due to limitations in the system configuration, we are unable fo comment
whether the audit trail feature operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software or whether there were any insfances of the audit trail feature being tampered with
Additionally, where audil trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated in previous year, the
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

Further, the Company has used anolher accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which does nol have the feature of recording audit trail (edit logs) facility. Consequently, we are
unable to comment on audit trail feature of the said software.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according lo the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is nol in excess of the Iimit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 187(16) of the Act which are reguired te be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.-101248W/W-100022

Qe

EX

Ritesh Rathi

Partner

Place. Kolkata Membership No.: 069207
Date: 30 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25069207BMOWZX7495
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BSR&Co LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

{i} (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verfication
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, all items of property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification s reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
noticed on such verification.

{e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the titie deeds of immovable properties (other than immovahble
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company

{d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Propery, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

{e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (8)  The inventory, except goods-in-fransit has been physically verified by the management during
the year.For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records. In our opinion, the frequency of sueh verification (s reascnable and procedures and
coverage as followed by managemen! were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accardingly, clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(i) According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guaraniee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has made
investments in companies and other parties, in respect of which the requisile information is as
below. The Company has not made any investments in firms or limited liahility partnerships
during the year

{a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company. the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured lo companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not provided any guaraniee or
given any security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of ioans,
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BSR&Co LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

{iv)

v

{vi)

(vil) ()

Accaording to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(c) of the QOrder is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations glven to us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any leans or advances in the
nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(jii){f) of the Order is not applicable.

According lo the infermation and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act’). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be depasits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
sold by it. Accordingly, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these stalulory dues has been
subsumed into G3T

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate
autharities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Provident Fund and Income-
Tax. As informed to us by the management, the Company did not have any dues pertaining to
Duty of Customs,

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs ar Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as al 31 March 2025 for a period of mere than six months
from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

MName of MNature of Amount Period to | Due date Date of Remark
the the dues (Rs in which the payment | s, ifany
statute lakhs.) amount
relates
Employee | Provident 1.82 MNovember | 15th of the Unpaid
8 Fund 2018 to | succeedin
Provident March g month
Fund Act, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Continued)
Name of Nature of Amount Period to | Due date Date of Remark
the the dues {Rs in which the payment | s, if any
statute lakhs.) amount
relates
1952

(B)

(i)

(ix) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

| Name of MNature of Amount Period to Forum where Rﬁmarks_I
the statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is ,ifany
lakhs) amount pending
relates
West Entry Tax | 0.89 2014-15 | Additional None
Bengal Tax | Demand Commissioner
on Entry of
Goods  into
Local
Arrears Act,
2012

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the recards of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year

According to the information and explanations given ta us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year Accordingly, clause 3{ixj(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declarad a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial Institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term leans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and expianations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company. we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
beaen used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidianes as defined under
the Act

According to the information and explanations given lo us and procedures performed by us, we
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (&)

(b

(c)

(xil)

(i)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

{xvi) (&)

(b)

(c)

report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries (as definad under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the Iinformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Cempany, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable

Dunng the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Campany or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year except that the Company has filed a complaint
with police authorities alleging that a particular vendor (logistics pariner) of the Company has
fraudulently withheid amounts aggregating Rs. 1,091.76 lakhs (net of service charges payable
to the vendar), representing amounts collected by such vendor from the Company's customers
for delivery of goods. Investigations are under progress and the Company has written off such
recelvable and terminated the contract with the said vendor

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accardingly, clause J{xii) of the Order 1s not applicable.

In our opinien and according o the infermalion and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statemenis
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audil procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of s
business,

We have considered the internal audit reporis of the Company issued lill date for the period
under audit,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not-entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connecied to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 182 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3{xvi}{a) of the Crder is not applicable

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018) does not have more than
ong CIC.

The Company has incurred cash |osses of Rs 6,376 63 lakhs in the current financial year. Except
for the impact of the qualification, which is not quantifiable, the Company has not incurred cash

Page B of 12



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

{wiii)

(xix)

()

losses in the previous year.

There has been na resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supparting the assumptions, nothing has come fo our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audil report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, slale
that this is not an assurance as to the future viakility of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all iabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due

In our opinion and according o the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any projecl. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx){a) and 3{xx)(b) of the Crder are not applicable

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accouniants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

,'\b"'-"IJ
(o

Q—‘ J_}nh'
Ritesh Rathi
Pariner
Place: Kolkata Membership No.: 069207
Date: 30 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:250692078MOWZX7495
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sastasundar
Healthbuddy Limited (*the Company"} as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of cur report below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has maintained, in all matenal respects, adequate internal financial cantrols with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectiely as of 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considenng the essential components of internal contral
stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied In our audit of the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of the Company, and the material weakness does
not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the Company's internal financial controls with reference {o financial
statements as of 31 March 2025

The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for reconciliation of receivables from
vendors {logistic partners) which could potentially resull in non-recovery/material misstatement of such
recelvables.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, such thal there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company's annual or ntenm financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and mainlaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial slalements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial conirols that were operaling effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, Including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act

Auditor's Responsibility

the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Act, {o the exient applicable to
Page 100of 12




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

an audii of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respecis.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial contrals with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our quelified audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Referance to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial staiements include those policies and
procedures thal (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recarded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding pravention or timely detection of unauthorised acqguisition, use,
or disposition of Ihe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibilily of collusion or improper management overmride of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detecled Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference lo financial statements to future penods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadeguate because of

Page 11 of 12



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/\W-100022

Qs

Q‘_;U.J-\"
Ritesh Rathi
Partner
Place. Kolkata Membership No., 069207
Date: 30 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25069207BMOWZ X7495
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Halance Sheot 35 af March 31, 2025

SARTASUNEAR HEALTHEUDDY LEMITED

1 Kolkata
[oate : My 30, T0ES

Chiat Binancis Oificer

Plape  Kalkata
Dake + My 30, 2025

Rz. in Lakhs
Parziculars Motes Ak an March 3L, 2025 Asat March 31, 2024
[Refer Nate 40
Asvals
Mon-current sisets
(4] Property, plent and squipment 1Y 3,851.54 485340
[} Capital wark in progress 18 LOFTH 840
i) Intangible ausets an 3.549 4EE
d} Fimaricial ansets
U} Invetments ' 1957110 21.538:18
[} Qxher firancil sty 5 §73.33 634057
e Current tax assets {nat) & aTHAd 14.44
(I} Other non-zurrent assety T BAa2 oy
(g} Deferred Tax Apsats Fi 4 1008 T
Total non-current assets 34,596.58 33 59043
Current a5sats
[a} | nveniorias i L1 A0RE 11,533.37
[b) Firrancial #55ety
[} Ivestrmenis 9 GBS AR 6,824,597
[H] Trade recebratilesy i} 490 JATLEZ
fi®) Cesh and cash-eguivalenty 11 Li7oag 4311
|l¥] Aank halances other than (8] abova Li 1533786
[ fier financial assets L1 THER LT 4585331
L] Othar current mvets ¥ 3,E60.33 3,341 548
Tatal current assets 53359070 55.658.94
Tatal Asseis #0307 24 HE 391 38
Egudty and Liabilities
Equity
3] Eqlifty share caprtal 13 100 3s PRk ]
bl Orher equity H 03115 EE 5601041
Total equity 65,56%0.23 TRELL
Ban-current {iabdite
(| Foancial labilities
{1} Liase Fabilities T1a 4050 7a021
(i Prowinasns 1% 654,30 444 Fi
(] Mederrerd Tox Liaks It fned| ¥ F9F 34
Tkl non-current lizhifties 1,001.04 4, 18629
Current lahilities
[} Frsancial Kabd lithos
b Leava ligbiies 34 15389 10548
(i} Trade Payabies 1t
(a} Total ousseanding dues of Picr Bimerpr e b 184572 1,162 32
small £nterpraes
frTetal outstanding dues of creditor othar than 3, 83236 198078
ruicre gatormrlies ard smiell gnberprie
|l Other financial |@aititas 17 2,63030 EIAL A0
{b) Other eurront linhdties L4 495852 E[FE=h]
el Proviions i5 2816 27T
(] Currant txw bapilipes (5e1) S40ED JHLTE
Tutal gurnent lakbifities 535,97 6:173.31
Total liabilities 10,457,01 10,319.60
Tatal Eouity and Liabilit/es. 0,347,310 8O, 35
| Sermmmary of RMatesial Atosunting Polices bR ]
[ The lEmnlﬂdﬂ\ﬂl“Ml‘ILJiE ant mr‘ﬂ!.“‘ |'|;|I| af the naniul initements
s per our report of evon cate
Foc S R G Lo LLP Far and on behalf of the Baard of Directars
(Charkered Accountants sastasumdin Healthhisddy Limited
L& Form Reglstration Mo J01248W0W- 100022 JEIn | U151 WHRR DL IPLC LG 9]
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s oot B -
: L =
Ailesh Rathi . L mittal Ramash Sharma
Pariner Chalrman & Stanaging Director Bivezioe
Iemibership Mo 069207 [P 365805 DI GE33H307
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

L

The accumpanying notesare ar mtegro | part of the financial statoments
A5 per our report of oven date

For BSRE Co. LLP
Chortered Accountonte
ICA Fiven Registrotion Na: 1012480 W-1000322

U

Ritesh Rathi
Paiteer
plembership No, 065207

Place : Kalkata

Date ; May 30, 2015

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Motes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 202 March 31, 2024
(Refer Nate 40)
Income
1. |Revanue from operations 19 108 45821 13%,172.85
I |Qther income i 4,779.40 5.805.31
L [Total incame (1+00) 113,377.61 120,974.16
IV, |Expenses
Cost of materiale consumed 11 005 3650
Purchases of stock-in-trade bkl 101,577 47 116, 762,64
Changes ininventorizs of finfched poods and stock-in-trade ) (10,57} 6,319.66
Employes benefits expense 23 4,411.69 4,178,10
Fiflnce Costs 14 =02 150160
Depradiatian and amartisation espansze 3 Big.55 901.02
Other enpenses 5 8,819.00 8, 1e9.79
Total expense [IV) 115.491.21 136,639.31
V. [Profit /{Loss) before Tax and Exceptignal ltems { 11V ) [2,213.60)| 4,338.85
VI |Exceptions items 6 8.686,18 -
VIL |Profit/(Loss) before Tax (V-V} {11,853.78 4,3348.85
WL | Tax expenss
la] Current tax 7 4607 1,058 80
| Deferred tax 27 (4,005.10 {187.04)
|} Income Tax for Earlior Years {527.58) (2,405.27|
1K, |Profitf{Loss) for the year (VI-VIlI) {8,213.17] 6 142.36
¥ [@ther camprehensive incame,/(loss] for the year
Hams that will not be subsequantly reclassified to profit & loss
{al Re-measurerment gains/[losses) on defined benefit obligations net of tax {68:36) 17.71)
Total other comprehensive iIncome/{loss) for the year, net of Income tax (6836 {7.71)
Xl |Total Comprehensive Income/filass) for the year (8,281.53] 5,134,655
Earnings ger share - Sasic and dituted (Nominal value Rs: 10 per shere] 28 |34.85) 2591
Summary of Materlal Accounting Policics 1.2

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sastacundar Healthbaddy Limited

fe; L1S411WA20IIPLCI601S5)

P

B L Wttal
Charman & Managing Lirectar
Dirs < DO365309

5 P '_ "
letay,
o)

Lokesh Aga
Chiel Financial Officer

Place : Kolkata
Diatw : May 30, 2025

W

N N ]
Ramesh Sharma =
Cirectar

DiN 05338207

f%r:_@:nm-r g"”‘

Balaram Sarkar
Company Secretany
051 Bembarship No. 470765




SASTASLINDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Refer note 40)
A. Operating Activities
Prafit/ (Loss) before tax (11,899.77) 4,338.85
Adjustments to reconcile profit/{loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Exceptional itemns 9,686.18 -
Gain on fair valuation of Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss {562.85) [1,B64.81)
Profit on sale of Investments [1,889.36) {1,109.79)
Depreciation and amortisation expense B18.55 8901.02
{Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and CWIP 34.27 [B.20)
Liakility no longer required written back (63.04) {27.64)
Incame from alternate investment fund {721.45) [275.18)
Loss allowance on Advances, Deposits and receivable from trade payables 166.12 76.49
Loss allowance on trade recelvables 225.03 329.50
Receivables from logistics partner written off 1,091.76 ‘
Bad debts / Advances written off 214,87 25.51
Gain on lease modification (30.72) |67.25)
Interast income 11,506.30) (2.235.80)
Finance costs 75.02 150,60
Operating cash flows before working capital changes {4,561.59) 231.30
Working capital adjustments:
Increase [ (Decrease) in Trade receivables, Other assets and Other financial assets 768.19 {1,056.09)
Decrease in Inventories 537.74 6,504.30
Increase in Provisions 123.39 85,71
(Decrease| / Increase in trade payables, ether current liabilities and other financial 3,096.77 (1,096.94)
llabilities
Cash generated from/(used In) operations {35.50) 4,678.28
Income tax pald {net of refund) [497.93) [564.55)
Net cash generated from/{used in) Operating Activities (a) (533.43) 4,113.73
B. Investing Activities
Furchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress & intangible assete {1,020.45) (1,339.98)
{including capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets & capital work 7.16 265.71
In progress
Froceeds from/linvestmient in) bank depasits 1,801.09 15,511.20
Interest on loans and deposits 1,505.58 1,988.52
Income fram alternate investment fund 639.46 275.18
Purchaze of investments (58,202.46) {B0,434.39)
Proceeds from sale/redemption of investments 52.667.46 559,545.97
Loans given - [50.00)
Loan repayment received 50.00
Met cash flows generated from/{used in) Investing Activities (b) |602.16) [4,183.69)
C. Financing Activities
Interest paid other than interest an lease liability {3.83) {14.20)
Payment of lease liabilities {200.61) 1390.47)
Met cash flows used in Financing Activities [c) [204.44) [404.67)
Net [Decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) {1,340.02} (474.63)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,511.02 2.860.24
Effects of commaon control business combination [Refer Nate 40) . 12541
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year [refer note 11) 1,171.00 2,511.02




Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBEUDDY LIMITED

Explanation;

2. Components of Cash & Cash Equbvalents [Refer Mote L1):

Batances with banks :

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out In Ind A% — 7 “Statement of Cash Flows"

Rs. in lakhs

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Refer note 40)

In'Current Accounts 1,169:12 2,439.07
Cash an Hand 186 195
Total 1,170.98 2,511.02
3. Non-cash investing activities Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Acquisition of Right-pf-use assets (Refer note 3) - 354.04

non-cash changes, refer naote 31a,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repart of even date

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
€Al Firm Aegistration Na: 101248W,/W-100022

Qe
Q™
Ritash Rathi

Partner
Membership Mo, 068207

4. There are na non cash changes in relation to cash flow from financing activities other than for lease liabilities. For moverneant of lease liabilities including

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
[CIN: U541 1WE2011PLC1E6D195]

1y t_._*’ﬁé\

S -
B, L. Mittal Ramiesh Sharma  —
Chairman & Managing Directar Director
DI - 00365803 DN : 05338207

{J@.ﬂ’lwéz'{r’%_% - ( %ﬁ_ﬂmm O

Loliesh Aga Balaram Sarkar
Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary
____ICSI Membership No, ATOT765

Place : Kolkata Place : Kolkata \\‘t N ,.,L‘,;:*
Date : May 30, 2025 Date : May 30, 2025 ‘ 'C}\
1':!
= | RUZRAIA
f_n 1{‘.:

D



Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A Equity share capital irefer note 13)

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHEUDDY LIMITED

Membership Mo, 069207

Place : Kolkata
Date : May 30, 2025

L Dlata

ho A
Lokesh Agarwal
Chief Fmancal Officer

Place : Kolkata
Date : May 30, 2025

ch:;@wm gﬁnﬁf

Balaram Sarkar
Company Secretary

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Rs. in lakhs No. of sharas Rs. in lakhs
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At the beginning of the year 23,703,524 2,37.35% 23,703,524 23M35
Fresh issue of Equity shares during the year = . ; .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 23,703,524 2,370.35 23,703,524 2.370.3%
B) Other aquity (refer note 14]
R, in lakhs
- oniids s - Total ather equity
Capital Reserves Retained earnings | Securities Premium
As at April 1, 2023 - 41,051 80 29,878.15 70,929.95
Effect of comman control business combination {Refer Note 40) 340.02 (1,803.21) i [1,463.19)
As at April 1, 2023 [restated) 3a0.02 35,248.59 29,878.15 B69,466.76
Profit for the year - 6,142.36 - 6,142.36
Other comprehensiva loss for the year - {7.71) . {7.71)
As at March 31, 2024 340.02 45,383.24 29.878.15 75,601,841
Loss for the year - (8,213.17) - (8,213.17)
Other comprehensiva loss for the year = (E8.36) X {65.35)
As at March 31, 2025 340.02 37,101.71 29,878.15 67,310.88
The accompamying notes are an Integral part of the linancizl statements
As per our report of even date
For BSR & Co. LLP Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101248W W 100022 1IN U154 1WB2011PLC160195)
) Q'C:}l“u II:'IL sz l‘% /.
R v
B. L. Mittal Ramesh Sharma —
Ritesh Rathi Chairman & Managing Directar Director
Partmer DHN ; 00365804 N ;05328207

ICS] Membership Mo, A70765

Lea
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SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Motes to finoncial statements os at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

4: Investments

Rs. in lakhs

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Unguoted Equity Shares {fully paid up) (At Cost)

- in wholly owned subsidiory companies

Genu Path Labs Limitad

[1,97,49,998 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 1,97,409,008) of A5 10 each)
Less: Provision For impairment of Non-Current investments

Sastasundar Healthtech Private Limited
(65,000 sruity shares (March 31, 2024: Nil] of s, 1D each)

- In subsidiary company
Happymate Foods Limited
[50,00,000 aquity sharss {March 31, 2024 : 50,00,000) of As, 10 each)

Less: Provision for impairment of Non-Current Investments

- In associate
Flipkart Health Limited (farmerly known as Sastasundar Marketplace Limited)

(NIl equity shares (March 31, 2024: 1,90,395) of As. 10 each)

Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up) (At Fair Value through profit and loss)
- In athers

Kelkata Neurgspine Centre and Wellness Clinke Private Limited

19,074 unlisted equity shares (March 31, 2024: Nil} of Rs. 10 each)

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
{1,60,000 wnlisted equity shares (March 31, 2024: Nil) of Rs: 1 each)

Unguoted Preference Shares {at fair value through profit and loss )
Flipkart Health Limited (formerly Sastasundar Marketplace Limited)
[Mil{March 31, 2024 20,686) Bonus 0.01% Mon Cumulative compulsory Convertible Prefarence share, {"Banus CCPS")|

Unguoted Debentures {at amortized cost |
3.75% Performance Chemlserve Limited
Nil (March 31, 2024: 1,000) Units st par value of As. 100,000

Avendus Finance Private Limited
Nil (March 31, 2024: 200] Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000

Manipal Educationand Medical Group India Private Limited
50 (March 31, 20249 50) Units at face value of Rs:20,00,000

Peninsula Infra Developments Private Limited
5,75,342 46 (March 31, 2024: Mil| Units a1 par value of Rs. 100

Casagrand Premier Builder Limited
6,00,000 (March 31, 2024 Nil) Units at par value of Rs, 100

Conwoad Construction & Developers Private Limited
£,00,000 [March 31, 2024 NIl) Units at par value of Rs. 100

Corpna Realtors Private Limited
6,00,000 (March 31, 2024 Nil) Units at par value of Rs, 100

Dureleg Manufacturing Private Limited
200 (March 31; 2024: Nil} Units at face value of #5.10,00,000

4,050.00

[3.952.75)

65.00

500.00

{500.00)

116.05

2,560.00

22539

57534

600.00

&00.00

&00.00

2,073.84

4,050.00

500,00

[500.00)

3,630.72

2,933.322

1,067.05

2,055.86

53272




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Motes to financial statements as ot and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Information about the fair value measurement and Company's exposure to creditand market risks s inchided in Note no. 35 and 36 respactively.

4: Investments Es. in lakhs
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Quoted Debentures [at amortized cost |
Earlysalary Sarvices Private Limited 494 23
500 (March 31, 2024: NIT) Unlts at face value of Bs.1,00,000
MAS Financial Services Limited 49553 ¥
500 {March 31, 2024: Wil) Units at face value of Rs.1,00,000
SK Finance Limited 539.99 =
500 [March 31, 2024: Nil} Unlts at face value of Rs.1,00,000
Arka Fincap Limited ROl @ 9.3% 1,002.86 1,001.27
1,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 1,00,000] Units at face value of Rs.1,000
Arka Fincap Limlted ROD@ 9% * 1,001.23
Mil {March 31, 2024 1,00,000) Units at face value of Rs.1,000
Investments at fair value through profit & lass
Unguoted alternative investment funds
360 One Commercial Yiekd Fund 2,714.03 2,624.04
2,36,08,285,09 (March 31, 2024: 3,36,08,285.92) Units at par value of Rs.10
Kotak Private Credit Fund 257014 2,699.07
28,006.417 (March 31, 2024: 26,031.626) Units at par value of Rs. 10,000
Sundaram Alternative Opp Series High Yield Secured 1,750.12 -
1,750 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Units at par value of fs, 100,000
Axis Structured Credit AIF - 11 1,642.50
1,624.915 |March 31, 2024; RIL) Units at par value of As. 100,000
India Realty Fxcelience Fund VI 1,289.63
12,220 [March 31, 2024: NIL) Units at par value of Rs, 10,000

18,571.70 11,535.18
Aggregate book value of quoted investment 2,532.22 Z2.002.50
Aggregate book value of unguoted Investment 41,932.23 20,032.68
Aggregate amount of impakrment in value of Investment 4,492,775 500.00




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

B: Current tax assets [net)

5: Other financial assets (Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) {At Amortised Cost) Bs, in lakhs
Mon-current Current
A% at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
2025 2024
Security deposits 77.43 147,08 z 5.84
Less: Provision for Security Deposits [42.18] - i ;
Other Bank Deposits - having original maturity of more than 12 months L3808 5,202.59 B6,255.50 2,904 52
Other receivable * - - 1.673.69 167285
573.33 6,349.67 7,969.59 4,583.31
* Other Recsivable includes the following: R in lakhs
#Asat March 31, | Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Receivable from logistics partners 316.25 975.30
Recehrable from payment gataway 758.65 198 495
Incentive Recefvable 44223 A426.00
Surplus fund batance in alternative investment fund 154.10 7211
Other 246 0.49
1,673.63 1,672.85 |

5.1: Fixed Deposit held as security with the Bank against Bank Guarsntee limit of Rs, £1.71 fakhs in March 31, 2025 (March'31.2024; Rs 39.71 lakhs) lssued in favour of West bengal
State Electricity Distribution Company Limited , Fived Déposits held as security against Overdraft facilitias taken from Bank for Re. 400 lakhs In March 31, 2025 {March 31, 2024: Rs 400
lakhs) and Fixed Deposit held as security with HOFC Bank against Cradit Card Facilities availed of Rs 23 lakhs (March 31,2024: Rs Nil lakhs)

Re.in lakhs

Non-Current

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recowver the goods fram a customer.

B Inventories Rs. in lakhs
Asat March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
(Valued at lower of cost and net reatisable value)
Traded Goods™ 10,957.57 11,505.51
Packing Materials 43.06 32.86
Tatal 11,000.63 11,538.37

* Includes Stock-in-transit of &5 57999 Izkhs {March 31, 2024 Rs 793,59 lakhs).

Achvance Income Tax 478.43 14,44
478.43 14.44
7: Other assets Rs. in lakhs
Non-current Curmrant
As at March 31, | Asat March 31, Asal March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
2025 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances Lar - -
Advance to Emplayees 11.89 10.08
Balance with statutory/ government autharities - - 2,185.87 2.048.01
Advance recoverable in cash or king from others - - 166.54 537.13
Prepaid expenses 0.65 007 4028 4523
Right of return assets {Refer Note 7.1 below) . - 1,156.54 598,02
Unsecured, considered doubtiul
Advance recoverable In cash or king 96.23 7177
Less: Credit impaired - ‘ [96.23) {71.77)
B.32 0.07 3,565.12 3,241.59

7.1 A refund llability |5 recognised for the goods that are expected ta return (L2, amount not included In transactions price). A right of return asset [and corresponding adjustment to

During the year ended March 31, 2025, Rs 9,16 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs 6.30 lakhs) ks recognised as write-down In value of inventories to net reaslisabie vajue.




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Motes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

9 : Current investment

Rs, in lakhs

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Investments at fair value through profit & loss
Quoted mutual funds

Kotak Liguid Fund Direct Plan Growth
9,639.023 (March 31, 2024: 22,229.18) Unlts at par value of Rs.1,000

SBI PSU Fund Direct Plan Growth
Nil iMarch 31, 2024; 86,02,119.328) Units at par value of Bs. 10

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund - Growth - Direct Plan
15,72,049.834 (March 31, 2024 NIL) Units at par value of Rs. 100

ICICI Prudentizl Liguid Fund -Growth
2,63,450.965 (March 31, 2024: NIL) Units at par value of Rs. 100

Kotak Crisil - 1BX Financlal Services 3 - 6 Months Debt Index Fund Direct Plan - Growth
1,49,19,254.037 (March 31, 2024: NIL) Units at par value of Rs, 10

ICICI Prudential Nifty 50 Index Fund - Direct Plan Growth
Nil {March 31, 2024: 47,48,243,738) Units at par value of Rs. 100

Aditya Birla Mifty 50 Index Fund - Growth - Direct Plan
NIl {March 31, 2024: 7,63,067.455) Units at par value of As. 100

Kotak Money Market - Direct Plan - Growth
B6,858.299 (March 31, 2024: Nil} Units at par value of Rs.1000

Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Growth - Direct Plan
B8,152.259 (March 31, 2024: Nil} Units at par value of Rs.100

ICICI Prudential Liguid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
36,56, 744.5966 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Units at par value of Rs.100

ICICI Prudential Liguid Fund Direct Plan - Growth
3.48,961.529 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Units at par value of Rs.100

Kotak Nifty 50 Index Fund Direct - Growth
Nil (March 31, 2024: 1,40,08,826.037) Units at par value of Rs.10

Motilal Oswal Nasdag 100 ETF
6,27,398 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Units at par value of Rs.10

505.03

6,582.60

1,001.88

1,501.83

304.88

350,88

14.038.07

1,339.65

1,040.26

1,084.57

2,634.86

10,542 89

1,734.56

2,028.76




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Ungquoted Debentures (at amaortized cost )
10.25% Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited
Nil (March 31, 2024: 47) Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000

10% Avanse Financial Services Limited
Mil (March 31, 2024: 67) Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000

Avendus Finance Private Limited
100 {March 31, 2024: Nil} Units at face value of Rs.10,00,000

Quoted Debentures (at amortized cost)
Arka Fincap Limited ROI @ 9%
1,00,000 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Units at face value of Rs.1,000

Unquoted preference shares in associate (Refer note 41)

Flipkart Health Limited (formerly known as Sastasundar Marketplace Limited)

[mil (March 31, 2024: 62,393) Bonus 0.01% Non-Cumulative Compulsory Convertible
Prefarence share ("Bonus CCP5"]]

1,013.48

1,000.92

78469

167 .86

B,846.78

28,689.48

28,824.97

Apgregate market value of guoted investment
Aggregate book value of guoted investment
Aggregate book value of unguoted investment

27,676.00
27,676.00
1,013.48

18,425.64
18,425.64
10,399.33

Information about the fair value measurement and Company's exposure to credit and market risks isincluded in Note no. 35 and 36 respectively.




SASTASUMDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Motes to financhsl statements as at and for the year ended March 21, 2025

10 ! Trade Recaivables Rs. in lakis
As ot March 31, | As at March 31,
2015 024
At amortised cost
Trade Recelvable considered good - Secured 57T 2,.205.51
Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured 431,18 1.766.31
Trade Receivable cradit impaired 750.84 BED.26
1,764.74 4,141.08
Leps: Loge sllowance [T69.84) |6RS.06)
Total Trade receivables 894.90 3471.82
Receivables #re sacurad to the axtent of Security Deposits taken from custarmers,
Trade Reccivable Ageing Schedule ason March 31, 2025 Rs, In lakhs
Outstanding periods from date of transaction
Particular
Less than 6 months |6 months -1 Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeors Maore than 3 Years Tatal
Undisputed
[i} Considered good 4095 156.42 268 043 - 620,43
(i) Cradit impaired 37.70 EG.EJ 28.47 18.04 333 174.34
A8E.65 243.32 3118 18.47 333 721,52
Less: Credil Impaired 37.70 Bf.50 28.47 18.04 333 174.34
Totzl Undisputed [A} 46095 156.42 2.68 043 - GE0.48
Disputed
(i} Considered good * 22,53 122.74 16710 40.05 13.00 I74.42
(il} Credit impaired 42.59 11695 216,17 130.24 TL55 595,50
65.12 239.69 395.27 179.29 90,55 969.92
Less: Credit impaired 42,59 116.95 228,17 130.24 T155 595.50
Total Disputed (B) 2253 12274 16710 29.05 13.00 374.42
Total Trade Receivable (A+B) 483.98 7916 169.78 40,28 13.00 994,50
Trade Receivable Ageing Scheduls as on March 31, 2024 Rs. in lakhs
Qutstanding periods from date of transaction
Parbicyilze Less than 6 months | 6 months -1 Years 1-2 Years 2:3 Vears More than 3 Yesrs Tatal
Undisputed
(] Considered good 1,262 86 a47.E7 M E 3,313.44
{ii} Credit impaired 83.82 55.34 69,86 2438 24.88 258.28
3,346.68 103.21 12157 24.38 24,88 357132
Less: Credit Impalned 8382 55.34 (9.85 24.38 24.88 258.28
Tatal Undisputed (A) 3,262.86 ar.87 171 £ 2 3,313.04
Disputed
(i} Considered good* 37.50 A6.86 S5e.44 13.73 345 158.38
(i} Eredit impaired 119.43 B5.56 111.44 A6.RH (2 410,98
157.33 113.42 16788 6061 T0.12 569.36
Less: Credit impabad 11% 43 B6.56 111484 46 88 BE.B7 A10.98
Tetal Disputed (8) 37.90 16.86 55.44 13.73 3.4% 15838
EE—
Tatal Trade Receivable [A+B) 3,200.76 94.73 59.15 13.73 3.45 3,471,82

* Managerment £ confident af recovenng the entire balance
i, Mo trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with ary other person.




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHEUDDY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
11 : Cash and cash equivalent Rs. in lakhs
As at March 31, 2025| Asat March 31,
2024
Balances with banks :
On current accounts 1.169.12 2,439.07
Cash on hand 1.86 71.95
1,170.98 2,511.02
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Rs. in lakhs
As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31,
2024
Balonces with banks :
On current accounts 1,169.12 2,439.07
Cash on hand 1.86 71.95
1,170.98 2,511.02
12 : Other bank balances Rs. in lakhs
Asat March 31, 2025| As at March 31,
2024
Depaosits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months - 1,527.86
- 1,527.86




Motes te financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

13 : Share Capital

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHELUDDY LIMITED

Rs. In lakhs
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Authorized capital

3,21,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 2,40,00,000) Equity Shares of Bs. 10 sach 3,210.00 2,400.00
100,000 [March 31, 2024 1,00,000) Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 100.00 104,00
3,210.00 2,500.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
2,37,03,524 (March 31, 2024: 3,37,03,524) Equity Sharos of Rs. 10 sach 2,370.35 237035
2,370.35 2,370.35

Terms / Rights attached to the equity shares

General Meeting,

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of year

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vate per share. The Compary
declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual

in the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders.

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Mo, of Shares Rs. in lakhs No. of Shares Rs. In lakhs
At the beginning of the year 237,003,524 2,370.35 2,37,03,524 237035
Fresh issue of Equity shares during the year - - = -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,37,03,524 2,370.35 2,37,03,524 2,370.35

Details of shares held by the Holding Company, the Ultimate Holding Company, their Subsidiaries and Associates:

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Mo, of Shares Rz, in lakhs Mo, of Shares Hs. in lakhs
Sastasundar Ventures Limited (including shares held by its nominess), Holding
Company
1,71,00,160 (March 31, 2024: 1,71,00,160) Equity Shares 1,71,00,160 1,710,02 1,71,00,160 1,710.02
The details of shareholders holding more than 5% eguity shares is set below: Hs. in lakhs

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Mo, of Shares % Holding Mo. of Shares U Holding
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid
Sastasundar Ventures Limited (including shares hald by its nominees) 1.71,00,160 T2.14 1,71,00,160 7214
Rohto Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd, | Japan 35,62,064 15.03 35,62 061 15.03
Mitsubishi Corporation , Japan 30,41,300 12.83 30,41,300 12.83

Disclosure of Shareholdings of Promoters

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Name of shareholders % of Total WNo. of Shares % of Total
Mo. of Shares
Shares Shares
Equity Shares
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully pofd
Sastasundar Ventures Limited {including shares held by its nominees) 1,71.,00,160 72.14 1,71,00,160 7214

There has been no change in percentage of holding during any of the period as disclosed above.




14 : Other equity

Motes to financlal statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Rs. in lakhs
Asat March 31, |As at March 31, 2024
2025

A, Securities premium (movement given below) 29,878.15 25,878.15
B. Retalned earnings (movement glven balow) irzionn 45,383 .24
C. Capital reserves [movement given below) 340.02 340.02
Total - Other equity 67,319.88 75,601.41
Movement in Securities premium Rs. in lakhs

As at March 31,

As at March 31, 2024

2025
Opening Balance 29 878.15 19.878.15
Movement during the year = =
Closing Balance 29,878.15 29,B78.15
Movement in retained eamings Rs. in lakhs
Asat March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Opening Balance 45,383.24 41,051.80
Effect of common control business cambination (Refar Note 40) {1,803.21)
Add: Profit/[Loss) for the year {8,213.17) 6,142.36
Add; Other comprehensive |oss {68.36] (7.71)
Closing Balance 37,101.71 45,383.24
Movement in capital reserves Rs. In lakhs
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Cpening Balance 3ap.oz -
Effect of common control business combination {Refer Mote 40) - 340.02
Addition / Deduction during the yaar =
Closing Balance 340.02 340.02

Nature and purpose of reserve:

accardance with the pravizions of the Companies Act, 2013,

permanersthy.
15 : Provisions

1. Securities premium reserve s used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as Issuance of bonus shares in

2. Retained earnings are the prafits that the company has earmed 1ill date. Retained earnings includes re-measurement (lass)/gain on defined benefit plans, not of taxes that
will not be reclassified ta statement of profit and loss. Aetalned earnings s a free reserve available to the company and ellgible for distribution to sharshalders,

3. Capital reserve an amalgamation is created on account of merger of subsidizry, The same is not avaiabie for distribution of dividend and (s expected to remain invested

As. in lakhs
Non-current Current
Asg at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Provision tar empleyee benefits
Gratulty [Refer note 30) 554,10 48474 2916 2377
654.10 444.74 29.16 23.77




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Motes bo financizl statements as ot snd for the year ended March 31, 2025

16 : Trade payables {at amortised cost)

section 13 of the MSSED Arct 2005

R, i |k
Asat March 31, As st March 31,
2025 2024
Trade gayables
To Micro and Small Enterprises {Refer note 16.1) 1,893,792 118232
Ta Othés than Micra and Small Entorprises 389235 197565
Trade payables to related parties (Reler note 32§ 0.01 513
5,786.04 3,123.10
Note 16,1
Infarmation in terms of section 22 of Misro and $mall Enterprises Develop Act, 2006 [MSMED) are given below: RE. In lakis
As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2025 2074
The principal amount and the interest dus therton remasning unpaid to any supplier as at the end of gach accounting year :
- Pringipal ot 1,693 72 1,162.32
Interest due an above {08 =
Tha amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the ammints of the
payment made to the supplker beyond the appointed day during each accounting year i R
Tha amount of interest due gnd payatde for the period of delay in making payment (which have been pald but beyand the
apoointed day during the year) but without adding the [ntered geodifiod under the MSIMED Act 205
Tha gmount of interast seerued and remeining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear a0 2
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable sven in the succeeding years, untll such datewhen the interest
uss 34 abowe are actually paid to thee small enterprise forthe purpose of disaliowance as a deductible xpe nditure under a8 =

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule 3s on March 31, 2025 R, in lakhs
Outstanding for tollowing periads from date of transaction
Particular .
Unbéled Bues | Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years -3 Years More than 3 Years Total
|| Total outstanding dues of micro ard small enterprises - 1.893.72 - - - 1868377
ii] Total putstanding dues of creditor other than mioro and small enterprines LEoad 3. 76634 +7.58 160 3,882 36
i) Digpuited duss of micro and small epterprises - = - B
v} Cisputed duss of creditor other than micr and small entorprises - -
Tatal trade payeble 96.84 5,660.06 27.58 L&0 - 5,786 08
Trade Poyabie Apeing Seheduls as on March 11, 2024 e in |akhs
Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particudar
Unbiiled Cues | Less than 1 Year 12 Yaars 2-3 Yaars More than 3 Yosrs|  Totl
i) Total autstanding dises of micro and emall enterprises - 1162.32 - - —~ 1,162.32
i) Total outstanding dues of creditor other than micro and small enterprses 32183 1 B8, 93 f i) 626 | 196078
iii) Disputed dues of micro and small entangrises - * -
) Dispusted dues of creditor other than micro and small &aniefprisss - z =
Total trade payable 321.83 281135 3.7 E.26 | 314310
Note 16.2: There are no deputad trade payable autstanding s an March 31, 2025 sns March 31, 30024
L7 : Other financial Fabilities (At amortised cost)
R, iri lakhs
Particolars Asat March 21, | Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Security deposit 691,49 121807
Payebles for purchase of caphal goods ShA2 B8
Qther Payahles - 1113
theanie ritalvad from ssle of mvestments 100
Rrhund Bakilities 1,258.81 649.20
Payable to employess 59218 346,15
263030 233360
18 : Othar current liabilities
Ax. In ldkhs
Prticidars Asat March 31, | Asat March3l,
02 2024
Tawes and Statutory dugs 17370 169.77
Contract Liahility « Advance from customers 22214 13783
495.24 0760




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the yoar ended March 31, 2025

1%  Revenue from operation

Rs, I lakis
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Products 108,498.21 1.35172.85
08,458.21 72.85
Datalls of Sale of Products
Traded Goads
Healthcare & FMOG Products 1,18 40821 1,35,153.73
Finished Goods
FBACE Products - 19.13
1,08,493.21 1,35,172.85
19.1 |Contract balances Year snded Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 534.90 4,756,89
Contract lshilities - Advance from Customers 322,14 137 83

1. Contract llabiltics incude advances received from cusiomers to deliver Health care and FMEG products. Contract labilitios convert to revenus|

within 1 year from the reporting date.
2. Hecondiliation of contract price to revenue recogmzsed:

Particutars Year ended Year endod
Miarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue & per cantracted price 1.09,.757.02 1,35822.05
Refund Liabilitios (1,258.81) {6:49.20)
Revenue recognised during the yaar 1,08.428.21 1,35,172 85
19.2 Performance obligation
The perdormance cbllgation is satislied upan delivery of the products,
20 Otherincome
Rz, n fakhs |
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Miarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest ingome o
<loang, depesiis and others * Tea.42 177063
debentures 522 445,95
-Income Tag Refund 072 13.78
Lacurity deposle pt amortizod eost 0.95 9,44
Incamae from altermate Investment fund T21.45 7518
Insurance Claim 037 199.90
Prafit on sale of mvestments 1.B89.36 1,108,719
Galn on falr valuation of Investments carried at FYTPL 562.85 1,864.81
Liahility no donger reguired written back 63,04 2764
Gain on lease modification 30Tz B7.15
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment L 620
Other miscellaneous Income 5,30 14.74
4.779.40 5,805.31
*includes interest on loans to subsidiaries [ associate (Refer Mote 32)
21 Cost of raw material consumed & Purchases of stock-|n-trade
fs. in lakis
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March31,204
a. Cost of rew material consumed
Inventony at the beginning of the year : 35.65
Add : Purchases during the year 0.0% 085
Less : Inventory ot the end of the yoar [Rcfer Note 8] - -}
Cost of raw material econsumed 0.05 36.50
b. Purchase of stock-in-trade [Healthcare and FMEG products) 1.01577.4% 1.16,762.64
1,01,577.47 1,16,762.64




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

Motes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

22  Changesin inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2029
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade 11,50551 17.922.37
Finished goods - 132
11,505.51 17,925.69
Lesa: inventories at the end of the year (Refer Mote E)
Stock-in-trade 10,957.57 11,506,513
Finkshaed goods - -
10,957.57 11,505.51
54754 6,420.18
Increase in Right of retum assets (Refer Note 7) (558.51) {100.52)
{10.57) 6,319.66
Employee benefits expanse
s, Invlakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salarias, wages and bonus (Including Director’s Remuneration| (Refer Note 32) 3.881.32 371114
Cantribution ta Provident and Other Funds [Refor Note 30} 247.14 24151
Contrlbution to Employees’ State [nsurance [Refer Mote 30} 35.29 33.64
Gratulty expense [Refer Note 30) 20289 136.09
Staff welfare expenses 45.05 55.72
441165 4%

The Code on Socal Security, 2020 (‘Code’} relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent m September 2020, The Code has been published inthe Gazette of India, Hawever, (ke dite on which the Code will come into effect has not
heen notified and the final rulesfinterpretation have pot yet been mswed. The Compary will assess the impact of the Code when it comes Into effect

and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective

24 Finance costs

Rs. in lzkhs
Particulars Year ended Yoar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
imerest Expense:
-Cin borrowings .75 274
= On lease habilitios 7119 147 86
- Others 0.08 -
75.02 150,60




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHEUDDY LIMITED

MNotes ta finoncial statements as at and for the yoar ended March 31, 2025

Dther Expenses
Rs, in lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year onded
March 31, 2025 Mazrch 31,2024
Electricity experses 204.27 a13.07
LoRistics mxpanes 143685 192351
Packing materials consumed 21478 334.407
Resrt {Refier Mote 31a) 14594 13984
Repairs and maintenance
Bulledirg 643 5.6
Others 378 4% 167.46
Serice charges 161224 347050
Insurance 52.54 ]
Hates and taxes 10758 14535
Buslness Promotion Expenses 331.08 BG.as
Commission and Brokerage 10898 56,40
Communication Experses 1027 35,57
Legal and Professional Fees 13579 20743
Online Charges 330.45 18768
Printing and Stationery 10621 114.04
Travelling and Conveyance vy 8a.56
Security Service Chirges 11865 129.61
Directar Sitting Fives 59 578
GServer hosting, bandwidth and other data service charges 27527 20471
Lass allowance on Advances / deposits [ other receivables 186,12 76.49
Loss allowance on trade receivables 22503 329.50
Loss on sale (discard of property, plant and equipment 327 -
Recelvables from boghstics parner written-aff (Refer Mote 25.1) 1,081,786 -
Bad debts / Advances written off 21497 25,51
Auditors' Remuneration®
Audit Fees 5250 48.75
Reimbursement of experses 167 2.85
LUmited Reviow T .00
hiscelianenus Expenses 34.45 17.54
£,819.00 ngﬂ:

“Paid to ertstwile auditors of the transferor compamy for the yoar ondpd 315t March 7024 857 07 |akhs,

25.1 The Company has filed a complaint with the Police Station, Baruipur, West Bengal, slleging that & particudar vendor (logiaties partner] bas

25

26.1

26.2

Fraudulently withheld amountc aggregating to Rs. 1,091,756 lakhs [net of senice charges payable to the vendar), representing amounts collocted by
such vendor fram customers for delivery of goods. Investgstions are under progress and such receivable have been written off amd the contract
with the said vendor has been terminatad. The Company confirms that no other party was involved in the aforasaid matter,

Exceptional ltems
Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Frovigion for lmpaltmint in wholly cwned subsidiary company |Refer Mote 26 1) 3,552.9% =
Loss onsake of investment in equity shares in associate [Reder Nete 26,2) 2.B04 72 .
Lozs an sake of investment in CCPS in associate |Refer Note 26.3) 1,BER.71 -

9,666.18 &

Based on mansgement's assassment of recoverable amount of the investment held in Genu Path Labs Limited, animpalrment loss of fs 3,9992.75
lakhs has been considered as an exceptional tem,

During the financial year, the company has liquidated its Investmint held in the form of Equity sheres in Flipkart Health Led for 3 consideration of Rs
B2 lakhs in aggregate. This has resulted in s joss of Rs 2,804.72 facs which has been disclpsed as excoptional item,

During the: financl= 1 year, the company has liquidated its Investmant held in the form of Compulsary Convertible Preference Shares in Flipkart Health
Ld for & conzideration af Rs B.8%91.29 lakhs in aggregate. This has resulted in s ipss of s 2,888 71 lacy which has been disclosed as sxceptional Item




Naotes to finzndal statements as at and for the yvear ended March 31, 2025

27 T expenses
{2)  incorss tax pastaining o current year in the sistement ol profit and loss:
Current
Incama tad charge for the year

Deferred tax
Dweterted tax charga/[sradit) for the year

Incame tax in other comprebershs insome

Baferred tax crodit for the yesr
L]

Prodit f (loss) baba e by
Enacied tas rites (%]

trcome tox expense caboudated st corporate tas rate
impact of change in taw rate for capital geing

Impact of adjustrient of brewght fermvard losses/unobsorbed deareciation
irmpack of lower tas vate bh cettain Mems
Impact o secagnition ! nan resegnition of deferred ik

DUher sustments
Total Income fax expense as por the stetement of prafit end lows

{t)  oeferred tax |Assots) [ liabilities (Net)

Farticulars

Defermed G Habilities:

Deferred tax aisels:
On tan impact on weingorasy diferencas in deprecsble ety

Un tax impsct an provivinn far eupected salss returm
On tax impact on provisons made

O tax impact on discourting of security depodi
Ot impact op expenses allowed on payment basls
Or tax impact on brovght forward locses

et Deferred tax |Assets] [ llobilltie

Act, 1961

18] Mot movernent of Defarred tax liobilltesf|assets)

On taa impisct on fais valvation of 001% Non Cumiilathe Com auliary
ConvertiblePreterencs sharas

Ontae impact on fale vidsation ef unguoted equity shares, mutual funds
ard Aftermate Investments Fund

On tis mmpact on temporary diffarences in depreciable assers

On taa impact on temporary differences on fight of uie asety and leade
Hahifities

Ontox impact an provizion for expected sales etum

On tas Impect oh provisions made

O tax empoct o din:nnrll‘.lrgfpm\nslnnlqg nfgel:unl',' deposit

On taa impect on eipenses sllowesd on payment basis

{ntaw impact on browght forward |osses

O ta impact on far valuation of 0.01% Non CumulaEiee Compulsony
Convert bk Preference sharas

On tax shpact an fdir yahiation of urmusted enuity shares, matual funds
ard Alfamate rnsitminats Fund

D tax sopac] on Lemporaty differences in depreoable aesits”

On tax impact an temporpry differences on Rigw of wie assem and leqas
linbifthea®

({ﬂ

1y tas snpact on provision for sspected sibes relum®

Reconcitiation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the yose:

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHELIDDY LIMITED

Impact of dasposal of 003 Nen Cumulative Compulsary Comserible Prefetence shares

Ori tar Irnpact dey fair valustion af 0.01% kop Cumulatwe Compulsory Convertibie Praference shares
Ot haw Impact on fair valuation | impairment of wngeoted eguity shares, mutual funds snd Alersato investmonts Fand

On tas impact on temgorary difierences on RlgD: of use assers and dablities

B Inlakhs
Vear ended Year wnded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 224
84607 1,088:80
B46.07 1,088.80 |
19,005 .10} (48704}
14,005,100} [#7.04)
2.99 (6.77)
(11 899, 74) 4,338.85
15.17% 15.17%
12,995.18} 1L.093.0%
569.71
- 131257}
1564 35) |61,13]
1161.61) ESH ]
[164.13]
{756} 15,66
{3,155.03) 1.7
As @t March 31 2024
As a1 Warch 31, 2025 {Refer Note 80)
283471
(4207 454,62
{az8.07) 2,290,33
7537 1007
Er AT nns
frioiv ).} 1288
41708 227.81
1113 17.11
3426 BANE
015 E
656,68 35L.99
11,085, 75} 294232

{d)  The cornpany has weitten back additional provision of s 527,58 |akhs in m the books of secounts relating to the merger of Retater Shakft Supply Chain Private Limited with the companyg.
The Company hiad written back additienal prowislon of INR 240537 1acs In presioos sear in mpect of previogs fingnclal year based on 1he order Lnder sectioh 143(3) of the Income-tax

R in lakls
Balance as at 1 Aprll 2024 Srised i peatit o Recognised In OC) Walince 2 0 21 Mt
lows 2025
2B {2834.71)
453,62 (EEAEQ) [433.07}
v L] 155.70) 175,77}
(2008} [253) {2257
L =22 [12.85) 2 |25, 74)
{Z3781) (365.26) [23.98) (81708}
(17114 584 [1L.13}
(1= cH 2987 |34,26}
0.0 oS [70,15}
294234 |41305.10 {2239} [1085.75]
Bs I lakhy
Balanee as a1 1 April 2023 Riicagnised In proflt on Recognised In QOCI T A8 Al
Ioss 20324

3a1947 {584 GR) an 2831AT
1 45594 nog 455,62
[1E7) oo |1o0g)

20,0y xon

[1288) [53dls}

(#34.58) 677

[ER AT oo

[54.68) o.od

312261 |38 7.0} EI7




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHEUDDY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements @5 at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

28. Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the prafit for the year attributabie to equity holders of the company by the weighled average number of Equity shares outstanding during|
the year,

Biluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity halders of the company {after adjusting for Interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on converson of all the dilutive potential Equity
shiares into Equity shares

As: in lakhs
Particulars Year ended Yeor ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Refer Note 40)
Profit /(Lass) attributable to equity holders of the company 8,213.17) 6,142.36
'Weighted Average number of Equity shares 237,03 524 23703524
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share {34.85) 25.91

29. Significant accounting judgernents, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the finantial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumpbons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assetsand
|iiabiiities, and the sccompanying disciosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adfustment to the carrying amount of assets or labllities affected In future periods.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, thal have a significant rlsk of causing  material adjustaient 1o the)
carrying amounts of ascets and liabilitias within the next financial year, are described below, Existing circumstances and assumptions about Future developments, higwever, may change
due 1o market changes o circumstances arising that are beyond the contral of the company. Sech changes are reflected in the assumptions whan they ocour,

Difined banefit pians [gratuity benefits)

The cast of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuaral valuations. An actuarial valuation irvolves making various
assumptions that may differ from ackual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary Increases and mertality rates. Due 1o the
complexities Involved In the valuation and its fong-term nature, 3 defined benefit obligation ic highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed 5t each
reparting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans, the management considers the interest rates of gavernment bonds in
currancies consistent with the currenciss of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate i based on publicly available martzlity tables for indiz. These mortality tables
tend to change anly at interval In response to demograghic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expectod future Infiation rates.

Furthar details shaut gratuity abligations are given in Nete 30

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the falr values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measered based on gquoted prices in active markets, their fair value s measured|
using valuation techaiques including the Discounted Cash Flow [OCF] model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasth e,
a degree of judgement s required in establishing fair valves, ludgements Include considarations of Inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34 and 35 for further disclasures.

|ﬂig|'|l of return

The Company updates Hs assessment of expectad raturns based on the best estimates and judgements and the refund Habilities are adjusted accardingly, Estimates of expected returns
are sensidive To changes in crcumstances and |udgements and the Company's past experience ragarding retumns may not be reprasentative of customers’ actual retums in future, Changes
in gstimates and judgements about the above factors could affect the reparted amounts of right of return asset and correspanding refund Hiabllities




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHELDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

30. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as ¢ specified percentage of employes salarles, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident fund and Employes State insurance
(Scheme, which & a defined contrbution plan. The campany haz no abligatisns other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss as they accree.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined employee benafit plas in the form of gratuity. Every employee, who has completed Five years or more of services, is entitled to Eratuity on terms not sy
tavourable than the provisions of the payment of Gratity Act, 1972, Liability as on the balance sheet date i provided based on actuarial valuation done by 3 certified actuary using
praject unit credit method, The Gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employess at retirement, disability or termination of employment baing an amount Bated an tho
raspective employee's (ast drawn salary and thie number of years of employment with the Company, The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Carporation of India. The defined benafit
plan expose the Company to actuarial risks, such 35 langevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment| risk

The fallowing tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised In the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet

for the respective plans:

INet employee benefits expense recognized in the employee cost.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Currermt service cost 14267 11151
Interest cost on the net defined benefit Eabllity 31.16 24 58
Benefit Cost (Expense Recognized in Statemant of Profit & lass) 173.83 136.09
Remeasurement gains/|losses) In other comprehensive (neame (OCH)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
R in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Actuarial {gains] [ Losses avising from
- demographic assumptions - 1.66
- financial assumplions (5.36) 2445
- experience adjustments 9767 125.03)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net interest expense .05 {0, 14)
MNet expense recognised for the period in OO 91.36 0.94
Balance Sheet
Benafit asset / [iabifity
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakis
Present waluee of defined benefit abligation 63193 4T6.66
Less: Fair value of plan assets B&67 8.15
et lbility 683.26 468.51

|Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are a3 follows :

Parthculars
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs in lakhs Rz in lakhs

Dpening defined benefit ohligation 475,665 9713
Effect of commaon control business combination (Refar Nate 40} 32,22
Opening defined henefit obligation [restated) 17666 37,35
Current service cost 14267 11151
Imtarest cost 3173 2510
Re-measurement {or Actuarial] (gain] [ loss arjsing from

- Changes in demopradhic assumptions - 166

- LChanges in financial assumptions |6.36) 24.45

- Expetignce vanance (Le. Actual expariencs vs assumptions) 97 67 [25.03]
HBensfits paid |50, 44) (40 38]
Closing defined benofit obligation 69193 476,66
Changues in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :
Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A3 in fakhs Rs in lakhs

Qpening fair value of plan assets &15 749
Expected return / Investment income 057 0,52
Ermpioyers conte bution 50.45 28.9]
Benelits gaid {5044} {28.91)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recogrised in net intorest expense {0.05] (.14
Closing falr value of plan assets 8.566 815




SASTASLINDAR HEALTHEUDDY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particufars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

%% b

Imvestrments with Life Insurance Corporation of India 1009 1005
The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the company's plan are as follows
Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.03% 6.58% 1o 7%
Expected rate of return on assets 703% 5984
Future salary Increases 2.00% H% 1o 1056
Mareality Rate HAM 2012-2015 1AM 2012-2015

Uitimate Ultimiate

Contribution to defined contribution plans recognized as expense are as under :
Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rs in lakhs B in [akhs
Cantributian 1o Provident and other fund 24714 24151
Caontribution to Employees State Insurance 3579 33.64
Assumptions sensitivity analysis for significant sssumptions is as below:
Assumptions
Sensitivity Level March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs in lakhs Rs in |alths

Discount Rate

Change in defined benefit obfigation

Increase by 0.5% |B0.ES) 141.13)
Drecrease 0.5 BR.59 §6,37
Salary Growth Rate
Increase by 0.5% B535 4231
Decrease 0.5% (58.82) (38.59)
Expected payment for future years
Expected paymants to be made

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Within the next 12 months {next annual reparting periad) 3018 2458
Between ? and 5 years 50,31 18,53
Between b and 10 years 12227 10283
Beyond 10 years 314162 2,054.42
Total expected payments 3,344.36 2,200.36

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the government bond yleld as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term  of the obligations,
Expected rate-of retum on plas sssets: This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the

obligations;

Salary escalation rate; The estimates of future salary inereases considered taking into account the inflation, senkrity, pramotion and other relevant factors.
The Company expects to contribute Re 3016 lakhs to the fund inthe next fimancial year. The welghted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2025 s 17 years

{Mlarch 31, 2024 is 18 years)




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHEL DDY LINMITED

Motes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

31.Cantingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements
31.a, Lease
(Codmpem 05 g lesses

The carmying amounts of right of use agsats are detailed in note 3C

The Cornpany has entered into lease transactions for office and warehouse premises ete. These lease agreements are for perlod of upto 9 years with an option to renew the |ease.

Helow are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements durning the year: R, ir1 lakhs)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 968.67 1,168.30
Effect of comman control business combinatians | Refer Note 40 = 11592
Opening balance [Rastated) 966.67 1,784.22
Additlons = 394,04
Accretion of imterest T1.19 147.85
Paymenis (200E1) |290.47}
Deletion during the year on account of termination of lease agreements (278.32) [466.98)
Closing balance 550.93 968.67
Curran 15399 109.45
MNon-current ADE.94 758.21
|The maturity analyss of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 36.3,
|The effective interest rate for amertisation of lease Habilities has been considered within the range of 10.50% to 11.20%.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: Rs.in lakhs

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 16346 29787
Interest expense on lease liabilities 7119 147.86
Expense refating to short-term isases [inciuded in other expenses) 145,94 13589
Gain an lease modification (included in other income ) (30.72) 167.25)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 349,87 518.37
The campany had total cash cutflows for leases of Ry 200061 |akhs in March 31, 2025 (Rs 390,47 lakhs in March 31, 2024,

31 b Commitments

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
R in lakhs As In lakhs

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execuled on capital account {net of eapital advancel and not provided for 21.51

Tatal 21.51 §
31.c. Contingent Liabiiities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

‘West Bengal Tax on Entry of Goods inta Local Areas Act, 2012 059 0.2
Total 0.89 0.89




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

(Motes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

32. Related parties transactions
32.a MName of related parties and description of relatianship
i} Related parties where control exists
a) Holding Company
Sastasundar Ventures Limited

Name of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
a} Subsidiary Companies

Hapgymate Foods Limited

Genu Path Labs Limited

Sastasundar HealthTech Private Limited [w.e F September 18,2024)

n

b} Fellow Subsidizry Company
Innogrow Technologies Limited

c} Enterprise exercising significant influence directlyfindirectly ower the Comparny
Mitsubishi Corparation India Private Limited [sunsidiary of Mitsubishi Corparation , Japan)

d) Associate
Flipkart Health Limited (Formerhy known as Sastasundar Marketplace Limited] upto October 18,2024

&) Key Managerial Personnel

Mr, Banwari Lal Mittal, Chairman & Managing Directar

M. Ravi Kant Sharra, Director

Mr, Kaji Suzuki, Director

M r, Yutaka Swzuki, Director

hir. Ramesh Sharma, Whole-time director

Mr. Parimal Kumar Chattaraj, Independent Director

M. Rupanjana Dey, independent Director

Mr. Dinkar Bagaria, Chief Financ:al Officer [upto w.ef, July 31, 2024)
wir, Abhishek Mishra, Company secretary {upto w e July B, 2024)
Mir. Balaram Sarkar, Company Secretary (w.o f Augyst 09, 2034)
W1 Lokesh Agarwal Chiel Financial Officer (w_e.{ August 1, 2024)




SASTASUNDAR HEALTHEUDDY LIMITED

Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

32 b, Related party transactions and balances: R, In bakhs
SLNe Related Parties Mature of Transactions Transactions {Payable)/Receivable
Year ended March | Year ended March | As ot 31 March As at 31 March
31,2025 31, 2034 2025 2024
Holding Com pany
1 |sastaswndar Ventures Limited [Cufpnr:tﬂ Fuarntes takisn 5 01y | S
|Uth1.-r mecrme & Roimbursomont 0.06 : 3
Subsidiary Companiss
2 |Genu Path Labs Limited fnvestment in Eguity Share Capital 1,100.00 - =
Loan Given 50.00 - -
Loan recovered {incloding interest) - 5042 - =
Interost Income 0.42 = -
Other Income & Reimbursemont 023 0,04
3 |SastaSundar Healthtech Private Limited Imvestment in Equity 65.00 - a
Othar Income & Ralmbursement 046 = = -
Associate
Fellow Subsidiary Companies / Limited Liability Partnesship
4 |innogrow Technologics Limited Payment towards rent 167,12 i29.43 - =
Amourt paid towards electricty charges 2563 2855 . (012}
Office Maintenance Expenses 016 - =
Enterprise exercising significant influence over the Company
5 | Mitsubish| Carparation india Private Limitad | Professional fee expenses | -] 50,00 [ | 14,50}
Enterprizes on which Key Manzgerial Person and/ or their relative exercise significant influence
& |Luv kush Projects Limited Prafessional fes expenses 0,16 | 0.57 | ie.01]] [0.51]
Key Manaperial Personnel
7 |Mr. Banwar Lal Mittal Director's Aemuneration 173.84 144.48 (20.44) (17.02]
& |Mr. Ravl Kant Sharma Director's Remuneration 62,08 144,45 . [17.02]
5 __|Mr. Aemesh Xumar Sharma Trector's Remuneration 43,09 39.79 [1.45] {3.19]
10 |Mr, Parimal Kumar Chattaraj Sltling Fees 2R 2.B& - .
11 | Ms. Rupanjana Dey Sitting Fevs 2.60 2.40 =
12 |Mr. [Mnkar Bagaria Aemunerstion 16.72 55.77 {3.97)
13 |Mr, Abhishok Mishra Aemuneration 457 15.73 . 11.47)
14 | Mr Lokesh Agarwal Remuneration 024 - {3.16]
15 |Mr Bataram Sarkar Remunaration 11.64 11.80]

MNotes:

1. Transactions stated above are excluding applicable taves,

2. Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made on terms eguivalent to those that prevail m arm's length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the year-end ore unsecoesd and settiemant
gecurs in cash, There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or paysbles except sz disclosad shave.




[Motes ta financial statements as at and for the vear anded March 31, 2025

33. Segment reporting

yearended 31 March 2024.
34. Falr values

approximations of falr values:

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHBUDDY LIMITED

The Company operates In anly one business sagment |.e, trading of Healthcare and FMCG products dnd inenly one geagraphic segment ie. Indla. Accordingly there are no separate)
reportable segments under Ind AS - 108 - Operating Segments. Sale of goods to one cuttamers amounts to Rs 37,521.12 lakhs which is 20.61% of the tatal sale of products during the

Set.out below, is a comparison by ciass of the carrying amounts and Tair value of the Company financial instruments, other than those with camrylng amounts that are reasongble

Rs. in lakns
Particulors Carrying Value as at Fair Value as at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 7024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i} Financial Assets
a) Measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Imvestment in Unquaoted Equity Shares 2.676.05 Z 2,676.05 -
Investment in Quoted mutual funds 20.675.08 18425 64 26,675.08 1842554
Investment in Unguoted Alternate Investment Funds 0,966.82 5,323.11 S.066.82 532311
Investment in Ungquoted Borus 0.01% MNon-Cumulative Compulsory Convertible - 11, 780,00 - 11,780.00
Preference share
b} Measured at Amortized Cost
{1 Investments 8.220.98 7,150.68 9. 220.98 1,150,668
[} Trade recervables 994,90 347182 954,90 347182
[ill} Cash and cash equivalents 1,170.98 2,511.02 117098 2,511.02
() Other bank balances - 1,537.86 1,527 BE
[v} Other finarcial assets §.547.92 10,932 98 8.54292 1093798
Total Financial assets 59,247.72 61,123.11 50,247.72 51,123.11
(ki) Financial Liabilities
a} Measured al Amortized Cost
{I} Trade Payables 5,786.08 3,143.10 5,786.08 3,143.10
{ii:l Lazasa liahifitias 56093 HER.E7 SB93 968.67
{iil) Other Tinanciat liabalities 1.630.30 2,132.60 2.630.30 223260
Total Financial liabilities 8,977.31 6,344.37 8,977.31 6,344.37

amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

34.1. Valvation principles

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables and other financial liabilities and assets approvimate their carrying

Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ar paid to transfer a liability Inan orderly transaction |n thee principal (or most advantageous) market a1 1he measuremeant
date under currant market conditions {i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observabie or estimated using a voluation technigue. In order to show how fair values
have been derived, financial instruments-are classified based onea Rierarchy of valuation technigues, as explained in Note 35.1.
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35, Fair Value Hierarchy of assels and liabilities
. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabllities as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Azsets Rs. in lakhs
Partlculars Eair Value through Profit & Loss
Carrying Value Fair Value Level- 1 Level -2 Level -3 Total

rdatrmrEinLiaquoted Sauity Siistue 2,676.06 2.676.05 ! 2,560.00 116.05 2,67605
Investment in Quoted mutual funds 26,675.08 3667508 . 26,675.08 . 26,675 08
Investmant in Linguated Alternate 4,966.82 006682 . 956682 : 9,966.82
Investment Funds

Investment in Unguoted Bonus 0.0134

Man-Cumulative Compulsory

(Convertible Prefefence share ) - -

Total 39,317.95 39,317.95 - 39,201.90 116.05 39,317.95
Il The carrying ampunt and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabifities as 3t March 31, 2024 i5 as foillows:

|Assets Rs_in lakhe
|Particulars Fair Walue through Profit & Loss

Carrying Value Fair Value Lewvel- 1 Level - 2 Level-3 Total

Investment in Quoted mutdal Tunds 1842564 1842564 . 18,425 54 . 1842564
I t

Mvestment in Unquolted Alternate 532311 537311 ) 532311 ) 537311
frves tment Funds

Investment in Unguoted Bonus 0.01%

Mon-Cumulative Compulsory

Convertible Preference share ALari 11,780.00 z 11,780.00 11,780,00
Total 35 528.75 35.528.75 = 23,748.75 11,7B0.00 35,528.75

35.1 Valuation technique used
Egquity instruments which are actively traded on public stock exchanges with resdily available active prices on a regular basis are classified as Leval 1

Uints hefd in funds are measured based on their pubfished net asset value [NAV), taking inte account redemption and/ar other restrictiors. Such instruments are generally Level 2.
Instruments in non-listed entities are Initially recognised at tranzaction price and re-measured (to the extent information s avallable) and valued on a case-by-case are classified as Level 2
and fevel 3

Level 2 Hlerarchy:
Investment in Quoted mutual funds
Unies hald in funds are maasured based an thefr published net asset value {NAV), taking inle account redemption and/or ather restrictiors,

Investment in Alternate investmant funds
Units held in funds are measured based on their pulilished net asset value (NAY), taking into account rademption and/or other restrictions

Investment in Eguity shares of Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
inyestment in Egquity shares of Nationa! Stock Exchange of India Limited s valued using prices available in the secondary market basis trades made in the secondary market.

Leve| 3 Hierarchy:

Investment in Unguoted Equity Shares

The Company has computed the value of Kolkata Newrospine Centre and Wellness Clinlc Private Limited by discounting the cash flows L.e., using Discounted Cash Flow Method. The
valuation requires management to use unabservable Inputs in the model, of which the significant unabservable Inputs are disclosed in the tables below.

Investment In Unquoted Bonus 0.01% Non-Cumulative compualsary Convertible Preference share [“Bonus CCPS")

The Company has computed the value af Banus CCPS by discounting the cash flows ie., using Discounted Cash Flow Methad during the previous financial year, The valuation requires
management to use unabsarvable Inputs in the madel, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses reasonably possibie
alfernitivas for those significant unobservable inputs and determines thalr impact on the tota! fair value. Alse refer nate 41,

There have baan no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the perlod ended March 31, 2025 and during the vear ended March 31, 2024,

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:
The significant unobservable (nputs used in the falr value measurement categorised within Leved 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as 31 March|
31, 2024 and 3¢ at March 31, 2025 is shown below:

Valuation significant Inter relationship between significant
Particulars Technigue uriobservable inputs | unobservable inputs and fair value measurement
Diseotnted Cazh Discoynt The estimated fair value would increase / (decrease))
Eguity Shares in Kolkata Neurosping Centre and Wallness Clinic Private Limited Flow Method Rate IF tha discount rate wers lower f (highet)
Banus 0.01% Nen-Curnulative Compubsory Canvertible Preference share {Bonus CCPS) Discounted Cash 5ot The estimated fair value would increase [/ [derreasa)
Flaw Methad Rate iFthe discount rate were lower / (higher)
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3G, Financial risk management abjectives and policies

The Company’s financiat liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabiiities is to finance the Company's aperation, The Cornpany's financial assets
include investments, trade & ather receivables and cash & cash equivalents. The Company is exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Campany's senior management has
the overall responsibility far establishing and governing the Company's finangial risk management framework and develaning and manitoring the Co mipany's financial risk managemant
palicies. The Campany’s financlal risk management poficies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and moniter appropriate cantrols.

36.1. Market Risk

Market risk is the rikk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markal fisk comprises throg type of risk ie
currericy risk, interest rate risk and ather price risk such as aquity price risk. Curreney risk 15 not applicable ta the Ca mipany it is not involved in substantial foreign currency transactions.
Further, the Company daes not have any fluctuating interest rate bearing financlal instruments and hence, & not exposed ta Interest rate risk,

36.1.1, Price Risk

The Company's investment In mutual funds and alternative investments fund are susceptible to market price risk arising fram uncertainties abaut future values of the investmant. The
[Company manages such risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total instruments Reports on the portfolio are submitted to the Company's semior management
on a reguiar basiz. The Company's Board of Directars révigws and approves all investment decisions.

|Price sensitivity analysis
Fallowing fable provides the sansitivity impact to 2 1% apprecation/deciing in NAY of mutual fund and alternate investment fund investments a5 at this Balance Sheet date
Recin lakhs
Farticulars As at March 31, 2025 As at h’!ﬂl’l:h 31, 2024
Gain l{ ]I;g;}]_ Gai
MAV af mutual funds and alternate fnvestment fund appreciatas by 1% 36642 237.89
MAV of mutual funds and alternate investment fund declines by 1% (366 42) (23749

36.2. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the fik that counterparty will nat meet its obligations resulting in findncial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as frade recelvahles,
pank balances, loans, Investments and other financial assets. &t each reparting date, the Company measures loss aliowance for ¢ertain class of financial assets based on historical {rend,
Industry practices and the business envirenment in which the Company operates

Customer credit risk i managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk managamant, Cutstanding custamer racelvables are
regularly monitored and credit quality of a custamer is assessed, Credit risk arising from Trvestments, financial instruments and balances with banks Is limited because the COUMEr partiey
are banks and recognised fingnclal Institutions with high credit warthiness.

Rs. in lakhs
Recanciliztion of Loss AMlowance Trada receivables
A5 at Aprll 1, 2023 234.78
Add : Effect of comman cantral business combination [Refer Note 40) 14401
|As at April 1, 2023 (restated) 378,29
|add : Loss Allowance 329.50
Less: Loss Allowance adjusted Bad Debts written off 3853
As at March 31, 2024 B69.26
Add : Loss Allowance 225.03
Less: Less Allowance adjusted Bad Dents written off 124,45

As at March 31, 2025 F60.84
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36.3. Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the abligations associated with its financal [igbilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Campany's aparasch to managing liquidity is 1o ensure as far as possiole, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet it abilities when they are dae. Managément monitars
rolling forecasts of the Campany’s fiquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, The Company takes Inte accaunt the liquidity of the market in
which the entily operates,

Maturitles of Finandal Liabifities :
The Lable below analyses the Company's Financial Liabilities imta ralevant maturity groupings hased on their undiscounted contractual masturitias -

As at March 31, 2025 Ri. in lakhs,
Less than 1 Year Between 1-2 Between 2 - 3 Years Maora than 3 years Tatal
Years
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 5, 736,08 - - - 5, TRG.08
Leass Liabilities 20575 216.05 23346 15.97 66124
[Other Financial Liabilities 2,63030 - . * 1.630.30
As at March 31, 2024 Rs: in lakhs
Less than 1 Year Between 1-2 Batween 2 - 3 Years More than 3 years Total
Years
Financial Lizbilities
Trade Payables 3,143.10 - =, 314310
Lease Liabilities 29621 299,45 27568 30655 1,177,590
Other Financal Liabilities 2.232.60 . . . 2.232.60

37. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital (total equity] includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the parent, The primary objective of the Company's capital management 1s to mawimise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changas in economic conditions, Te malntaln ar adjust the capitsl structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to)
shareholders or issue new shares,

38, The Company is aot reguired to spend any amount an corporate social respansibiiity in accordance with Sectian 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
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35, Ratio Analysis and Its elemants

Mates to Findnclal Statements for the vear onded March 31, 2035

SASTASUNDAR HEALTHELODY LBAITED

wiuntion of imeeatments carned &t
FVTPL + Fair wiilue-on foeus ECFS

Irvesimpnts & Other bank
malances)

Sr NG| Ratlos Numarator Denominstor March 31, 3025 Batch 31, 2024 Variance {34) Reason for Varangs preater than 25%
T Gr socount of increase in Trade payahis urder]
1 |Current Ratie Curnesd Aspots Current Liabilt 554 a.02 -30%
el S the head Current labiltes
. Avirage Shareholder's D amroums of |oss mcureed during the year as|
2 |Retuingn Rata Perafit . i
u Eigusly rrafit fee the prrad Eoniity 1112% BI0M 136% enbommieos inidiiecopircLal
% [Invantory Tursoser Batlo Aevende from epertiong Average Inventany 963 814 5t
4 (Tradn Aeceieables Turnauert Late | Aevenude frem apetation Aunrage Trade Rocenmblis 4858 ELE= 2EN Ot pecount of decresse in Trade Fedevable
Purchaies durlng e year af caw
matarals and and stock in trade +
lea T Ratin : 4 F o Wt
5 [Trode Payahies Tarsower Ra itk Eiparizan Sitludiig non cash Auerage Trade Payablen 434 F24a 2508 On account of incresse in tade poyable,
prowisons)
G |Mec Cepital Turnoser Revenure from aporations ‘Wiorking Capieat * £ R o
On actount of less §
¥ |Met Prafit Rimo Mot dor the year AEvenie from opemiing TETH A 54% 26T ! ¥ SR (I T A
against profit in The proveoas year
Cagpetal Dmiployed |
farnings before mlerest and tamaz gt Bat Warth + Totl (Iri aceeemt of fnss Ineurred di B
i d §
8 |Return on Capalal employed 1PmﬁrLEp—-n T Fifaos Bsit) Denr (Borrowing + Liste 16:83% 5 A 955 st fl':‘ CLIrE ring the yaar a
- (inhilitses} + Tieferred Tar against peafit in YOS AT
Liahiiiny |
On socauns of lawar retuem on irvestment %
Inderosk income on fod deposins. M 2 compared to previcis year doe o urfavorably
bonds and debentures » Profiton | verage [Cuitent market conditions during the year.
R Investrnants = Maon current .
9 |Ratem on lneestment =ale of imyesiments + Prafit pnfar 6N T4.04% %

*Warking capital has hesn caleolstid s corrent meets mimes current kabdiias,
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40 The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 21 March 2024 approved a Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme) far amalgamation of Retailer Shaktl Supply Chain Frivats LUmited
("Transferor Company”| with Sastasundar HealthbuddyLimited (“Transferee Company” | under Sections 230 to 232 and ather relovant provisions of the Companics Act, 2013 and|
the rules made there under, with effect fram 1 April, 2022 ("the Appainted Bate”). The Scheme has been approved by the: Central Government through the Han'ble Nationa
Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench {"the NCLT/ Tribunal”) vide its arder dated 17 Detobar, 2004 ["the order”]. Conseguently, the companies have been amalgamated with
effect from 01 April 2023, being the appointed date speciflied In the Sctheme. The Transferee and Transfaror Company hava filed the afarementioned Order with the Raglstrar of
Companies, Koliata in e-form INC-28 dated 07 November, 2024, The Scheme has become effective on filing thereaf to Registrar of Compankes-and therehy impact of the aforesaid
armalgarmetian with effect fram the appointed date as mentioned above has been given effect te in thees Tinancks | staterments.

As per the requirements of Appendix € 1o Ind A5 102 “Business Combination”, the comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been restated a5 if the comman contral
business combination had accurned from the beginning of the earliest perlod presented, The net impact of restatament due to above zmalgamation has resulted (n capital resers
of Rz 340.02 lakhs which is credited to other oouity.

41. Other statutory Information:

. The Company does nat have any Benami property, where any praceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company Tor holding any Benami property under the Bonam
Transactions (Prohibition| Act, 1388 and rules made thereunder

- The Company da nat have any charges or satisfaction which /s yet ta be registerad with ROC beyend the statutory period.
The Company has not traded ar invested In Cryptocurrency transactions ( balances during the current and previous financial year.

I, Mo funds hive been advanced or koaned or invested |efther {rom barrowed Funds or share premium ar any other sources of kind of funds) by the Campany 1o or in any other
person{shor entitylies), including foreign entities (*intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recarded In writing ar atherwize, that the Intermediary shall land or invest §
party identified by or on behaif of the Company [Ultimate Beneficiaries]. The Campany has not recaived any fund from any partyls) (Funding Party] with the understanding that|
the Campany shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or imvest |n other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ["Ultimate Benaficiaries”) ar pravide any|
gunrantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

v, The Company have not any such trensaction which 15 not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrenderad or disclosed as income during the year [n the tax
assessrnenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, séarch or survey of anyother refevant pravisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

i. The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companiss ACt, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the
tinancial year,

-
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Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate Information

Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited (the “Company” or "SHBL") is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company
is located at Innovation Tower, Premises No. 16-315, Plot No. DH 6/32, Action Area — 10, New Town, Rajarhat,
Kolkata.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of wholesale trading of healthcare and related FMCG
products.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and presentation requirements of Division |
of Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111).

The financial statements were authorised far issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30" May 2025.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except certain financial assets and
liahilities which are measured at Fair Value as required by the relevant Indian Accounting Standards

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (in two decimals),
except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.

2.2 summary of material accounting policies

a. Common Control Business Combinations

Business combinations involving entities or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination and where
that control is not transitory are accounted for as per the pooling of interest method. The business combination
is accounted for as if the business combination had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative periad
presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose, comparatives are
revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves
is preserved, and they appear in the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the same form in which
they appeared in the financial statements of the acquired entity.

b. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

# Ebupected to be realised or intended to be sold or censumed in normal operating cycle

> Held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

# (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liahility for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as nen-current.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

vYwy

¥

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

¢. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is aiso the company’s functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date
of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based an
historical costin a foreign currency are transiated at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
d. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

»# Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
# Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs,




Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

# Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value
measurement is unobservable

‘:‘

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as Unguoted Preference Shares,
Involvernent of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management. The Management decides, after
discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation technigues and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the infarmation in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources ta determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

e. Revenue Recognition

At contract inception, Company assesses the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer. Revenue is recognised upon
transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount of the transaction price that is
allocated 1o that performance obligation and that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those products or services,

The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the
transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a custemer net of returns, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes}).

With respect to sale of products revenue is recognised ata point in time when the performance obligation is
satisfied and the customer obtains the control of goods or services. There is no significant financing components
involved on contract with customers. Invoices are usually payable within the credit period as agreed with
respective customers.

The Company recognises revenue only when it is probable that it will collect the consideration to which it will
be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer.

For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly

%ble that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
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Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Therefore, the amount of revenue recognised is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated hased on
the historical experience of sales returns, market conditions and specific contractual terms. In these
circumstances, a refund liahility and a right to recover returned goods asset are recognised.

The right to recover returned goods asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory less any
expected costs to recover goods. The refund liability is included in other current liabilities and the right to
recover returned goods is included in other current assets. The Company reviews Its estimate of expected
returns at each reporting date and updates the amounts of the asset and liability accordingly.

f. Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Itis recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
toincome takes. Itis measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted ar substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current-tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability an a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases and accounting bases of assets and
llabilities at the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be availsble against
which the deductible temparary differences can be utilised.

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets |s reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right ta offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either the same taxable entity
or different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneausly.

For items recognised in OC| or equity, deferred / current tax is also recognised in OC| ar equity,

o & Co,
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Sastasundar Healthbuddy Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

g. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Cost of an item of praperty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-canstructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for it intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site an which it Is located,

if significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of proparty, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits assaciated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. Assets held for sale are stated at
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell and depreciation on such assets ceases and shown
under "Assets held for sale”.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

Depreciation is calculated on a Written Down Value [WDV) basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Particulars Useful Economic Life
Building 60 Years

Plant & Equipment 5-15 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Electrical Equipment 10 years
Motor Vehicles B years

The Company depreciates the cost of Property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over
estimated useful lives which are as perthe useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except
Plant & Equipment which is lower than those indicated in Schedule Il i.e. 5-15 years. The management believes
that these useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
ta be used.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on the technical evaluation, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to Use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rate basis i.e, from (upto) the date on which asset is
ready for use |disposed of).
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h. Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amartisation and accumulated impairment losses,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amartisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amartisation period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in aceounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the staternent of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
ancther asset.

An intangible asset s derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
Is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Type of Asset Useful Life estimated by the
management
Computer Software 5 Years

i Leases

The Company assesses whather a contract contains a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 “Leases” at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises right-of-use assets (“ROU") and a lease liability at the lease commencement date
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. Eor these short-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and |ease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exerclsed.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase aption. In that case the right-of-use
asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as
these of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by irmpairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liahility.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Company, Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes [ts
sessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.
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j- Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted far as follows:

» Raw materials and Packing materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

# Finished goods: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on firstin, first out basis.

» Stock-in-trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventaries to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are combined together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU (or the asset),

An impairment loss s recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated ta the CGL, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or Group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews
at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists, An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment [oss had been
recognised.

1. Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated refiably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. If the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost,
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.
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m. Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit cbligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee,
and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-retirement benefits
Post-retirement benefits to employee can either be through Defined Contribution Plan or Defined Benefit Plan,

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and ESl is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme and ESI as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
cantribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling {if any, excluding interest), are recognised in
OC\. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates
to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs,

n. Financial instruments

Recognition and Initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becemes a party to the contractual
provislons of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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Classification and Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost; Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYOCI) — equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if it meets both the conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL: i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and i) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flaws that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOC| — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment by investment basis,

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets, On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cast or at FVOC! as at
FVTPL it doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The subsequent measurement of gains and losses of various categories of financial instruments are as follows:
(i) Financial assets at amortised cost: these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognlition is
recognised in profit or loss.

{ii}) Equity investments at FVOCI: these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OC| and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL: these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or EVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and Losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss,

Derecognition

Financial assets: The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
contral of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recagnised on
its balance sheet, but retains either all ar substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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Financial liabilities: The Company derecognises a financial liability when #s centractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liabitity with modified terms is recognised in profit ar
loss,

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit losses (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with ne significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses
are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses
(or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to
be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

o. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depasits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management,

p. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element
in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of
equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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4. Contingent Liahilities

A cantingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyand the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

r. Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged mainly in the business of trading of healthcare products. These, in the context of Ind
A5 -108 on Segment Reporting are considered to constitute one single primary segment. Further, there is no
reportable secondary segment i.e. Geographical Segment.

s. Exceptional items

Exceptional items are thase items that management considers, by virtue of their size or incidence, should be
disclosed separately to ensure that the financial information allows an understanding of the underlying
performance of the business in the year, so as to facilitate comparison with prier years (where required). Such
items are material by nature or amount to the respective year's result and require separate disclosure in
accordance with Ind AS.

t. Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ jsthe rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to'the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

u. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
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v. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

Investments In equity shares of subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associate 5,
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

2.3 standards issued but not effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company,
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